
Members and guests are expected to show respect and common courtesy and refrain from using offensive language and behavior. The Board may 

recess or adjourn into Executive Session to consider legal or personnel issues, if necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Tuesday, January 29, 2019 

1:30pm – West Center 
 
 
 

Directors:  Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols (Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer),  
Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), Nina Campfield, Lynne Chalmers,  
Charles Sieck, Tim Stewart, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 
 

 

 

  Agenda Topic  Director Exhibit Action 

1.  Call to Order / Quorum Crothers   

2.  Adopt Agenda Crothers X X 

3.  Consent Calendar 

1. Minutes: Board of Directors Meeting December 4, 2018; January 7, 2019 

2. Financial Statements: November 2018 

3. Set Record Date of February 1, 2019 for 2019 Annual Election 

Crothers X X 

4. President Report Crothers   

5. CEO Report Blumenthal   

6. Committee Reports 
A. Planning & Evaluation 

1. 3-5 Year Plan Review 
2. 2019 Club Projects 

B. Fiscal Affairs 
1. FY2017 Surplus to Initiatives Reserve 
2. Funding Recommendation – GVR Pickleball Center 

C. Nominations & Elections 
1. Governance Training 

D. Bylaws Ad Hoc  
E. Board Affairs 

1. Proposed New Club – GVR Needle-Arts Club 
F. Audit 
G. GVR – GVR Foundation Relationship Ad Hoc 
H. Survey Ad Hoc 

1. Annual Pulse Survey to be Included with 2019 Ballot 
I. Investments Ad Hoc 

 
Coon 

 
 

Myers 
 
 

Nichols 
 

Chalmers 
Vanderhoof 

 
Sieck 

 
Sieck 

 
Sadowski 

 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
 
 

X 

7.  New Business 
A. GVR Foundation “Appointed Director” Recommendation 

 
Kidwell 

 
X 

 
X 

8. GVR Foundation Report    

9.  Member Comments    

10. Executive Session (if necessary)    

11.  Adjournment   X 

 



 

1 

 

  A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS held Tuesday, December 4, 2018 at West Center, the 
President being in the chair and the Secretary being present. 
 
Directors Present: Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols 
(Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer), Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski 
(Assistant Treasurer), Nina Campfield, Lynne Chalmers, Charles Sieck, Tim Stewart, Sandra 
Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof 
 
Director Present Electronically: Kent Blumenthal (CEO) 
 
Staff: Cheryl Moose (CFO), Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), George 
Rushing II (Recreation Director), David Webster (Accounting Supervisor), Karen Miars 
(Administrative Assistant), Payton Snider (System Administrator), Conal Ward (IT Technician), 
Jason King (IT Technician) 
 
Visitors: 89 (includes additional staff) 
 
1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum  

President Crothers called the meeting to order at 1:30pm MST 
Roll call by Secretary Nichols; Quorum established. 

 
2. Adopt Agenda as amended 

MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Adopt Agenda as amended.  
Passed: 10 yes / 2 no (Campfield, Lambert) 

 
3. Consent Calendar 

MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Approve Financial Statements of October. 
Passed: unanimous 
 
MOTION: Nichols / Seconded. Approve October 30, 2018 Meeting Minutes as 
amended. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

4. President Report 

Good Afternoon. 
 
First, I am pleased to report that our CEO is back on his feet, so to speak, or at least on one 
foot and is back hard at work.  We are so very thankful that Kent and his wife came though 
their motorcycle accident as well as they did.  Kent will not be able to join us this afternoon 
as this was his first opportunity to get back in to see his surgeon.  We will miss him today. 
 
The major topic for today is our 2019 budget.  I’m very proud of how our board and 
administration have come together on a compromise budget that focuses on following 
board policy on dues increases and addresses the highest priority concern of our 



 

2 

 

membership:  keeping our facilities in top notch shape. Our ad hoc committee with the 
tireless, dedicated endless hours of Treasurer, Roger Meyers, did an excellent job of 
considering many alternatives and coming up with a solution that freezes dues for a year 
and allows for no decrease in member services.  Roger will take you through the details. 
 

5. CEO Report 

Good afternoon GVR members, Board, and staff. I am sorry that I am unable to be with you 
at our meeting today. My wife, Becky Charboneau and I have our first follow-up 
appointment in Tucson with one of the orthopedic surgeons caring for us after our recent 
motorcycle accident. This was the only date and time available to meet with the surgeon. 
 
Becky and I wish to extend our heartfelt appreciation and gratitude for the outpouring of 
well-wishes in the form of emails, texts, get-well cards, phone calls, gifts of food and meals, 
walking our dog Elsa, running errands and shopping, transportation, prayers, empathy, 
laughter, and genuine friendship. We realize that each one of these acts of kindness is 
making all the difference in our recovery. We are touched by your concern and support and 
determined to maintain a positive attitude; with your help we are healing and mending 
each day. 
 
As with all of our committee, board and membership meetings and forums, much planning 
and preparation is necessary to bring us together to conduct the business of our 
Corporation, and I am grateful for GVR members and staff devoted to this aim. 
 
So, in my physical absence at today's meeting, I send an intention to each of you for a 
productive and successful GVR Board meeting. 
 
The past two weeks necessitated that I work mostly from home, and I appreciate the 
flexibility and understanding of GVR members, Board and staff during this time. 
 
I look forward to being with you all in-person again soon, as well as resuming an exercise 
regimen in one of our fabulous fitness facilities as soon as possible, though it may be on 
crutches for several months. 
 
Thank you and stay well. 
 

6. Committee Reports 

A. Budget Ad Hoc 

1. MOTION: Myers / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors adopt 2019 
Operating and Capital Budgets in the 2019 Budget Plan Z ver. 2 as 
amended to include 2019 Fee Schedule, 2019 Club Expenditures, 2019 
MRR Reserve Expenditures, 2019 Non-Reserve Capital Expenditures, 
and 3-Year Capital Plan. (Exhibit – 2019 Budget Plan Z ver. 2). 
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Campfield) 
 

B. Fiscal Affairs – no report. 
 
C. Board Affairs – Discussion. 
 



 

3 

 

D. Planning & Evaluation – Director Coon gave an update on the expansion of East 
Center Pickleball Courts, the Pickleball Complex, and next steps for approved FY2019 
GVR Club requests. 

 
E. Nominations & Elections 

1. Director Nichols introduced slate of 2019 Board Candidates: Suzan Curtin, 
Christine Gallegos, Steve Gilbert, Connie Griffin, John Haymond, Eugene Kasper, 
Mark McIntosh, David Messick, Kathy Palese, Charles Soukup, John Stock, Eric 
Sullwold, David Thomas, Beverly Tobiason, Bob Warner, Don Weaver, and Michael 
Zelenak. 
 

2. MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Make the Carver Policy Governance 
training, the pilot group utilized, available to all current GVR Board of 
Directors as well as to the 2019 elected candidates to be paid out of the 
FY2018 budget. 
 
MOTION TO AMEND: Stewart / Seconded. Only train the five remaining 
Directors. 
 
Motion to Amend Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Sieck) 
 
Amended Motion Passed: unanimous 
 
APPROVED AMENDED MOTION: Make the Carver Policy Governance 
training, the pilot group utilized, available only to the five remaining Directors to 
be paid out of the FY2018 budget. 
 

F. Audit – Director Sieck gave a report for the Audit Committee. 
 
G. GVR-GVR Foundation Relationship Ad Hoc – Director Stewart reported on the 

second GVR-GVRF Relationship Ad Hoc Committee Member Forum conducted on 
November 16. 

 
H. Survey Ad Hoc – Director Thornton reported on the Underserved Subcommittee. 

 
I. Investments Ad Hoc – Director Sadowski reported the committee is in the process of 

interviewing potential financial advisors for GVR Reserve accounts. 
 
J. Bylaws Ad Hoc 

MOTION: Chalmers / Seconded. I move the GVR Board of Directors place 
on the 2019 GVR ballot the Bylaw change of adding “Life Care Members” in 
the rights of members to have Guests sections of the current Bylaws [i.e., 
Article II, Section 3.F and Section 4.A.3]. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

7. New Business 

A. GVR Foundation Member Assistance Program (MAP) Agreement – Discussion. 

  



 

4 

 

B. Allocation of FY2017 Surplus Funds 

MOTION: Myers / Seconded. Fiscal Affairs Committee recommends 
$283,285 be distributed from the Operating Cash account to the Initiatives 
Fund. 
 
Call the question: Lambert / Seconded. 
Passed: unanimous 
 
Motion Failed: 6 yes (Campfield, Coon, Lambert, Myers, Nichols, Stewart) 
/ 6 no 

 

C. Board of Directors Code of Conduct 

MOTION: Lambert / Seconded. Move that the Board Affairs Committee be 
asked to make a priority of developing a Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 
section that addresses Board Member conduct. 
Failed: 6 yes (Campfield, Chalmers, Coon, Lambert, Nichols, Stewart) / 6 no 
 

8. GVR Foundation Report – GVR Foundation President Blaine Nisson reported GVRF 
Directors participated in November 19 Day of Giving at Continental Plaza; GVRF is 
teaming up with Sun Shuttle and “Dial-a-Ride” in an effort to make transportation options 
more accessible to the community; 2019 SoAZ CultureFest III on March 2, 2019 in Tubac; 
and Write-A-Will Workshops on March 27 and 28, 2019.  

 

9. Member Comments: 4 
   

10. Adjournment 

MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Adjourn meeting at 4:20pm MST.  
Passed: unanimous 

 
**‘Action without Meeting’ Unanimous Consent Resolution.   

At the request of members of GVR – GVR Foundation Joint Ad Hoc Committee on October 
18, 2018, the Board of Directors was asked to approve posting the updated re-reconciliation 
of shared resources between GVRI and GVR Foundation on GVR’s website. 
This motion failed with a no vote from President Crothers. 
 

**‘Action without Meeting’ Unanimous Consent Resolution.   

At the request of President Carol Crothers on October 23, 2018, the Board of Directors was 
asked to vote via unanimous consent resolution to approve distribution of legal opinion 
obtained from GVR’s corporate attorney regarding Board Affairs Committee suggested re-
writes to Board Affairs Committee Members. 
This motion failed with a no vote from Director Campfield. 

 
 
 
 
 
              
Denise Nichols Date Karen Miars Date 
Secretary  Administrative Assistant 



 

 

 

  A special meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS held Monday, January 7, 2019 at West Center, the President being 

in the chair and the Secretary being present. 
 

Directors Present: Carol Crothers (President), Donna Coon (Vice-President), Denise Nichols 
(Secretary), Roger Myers (Treasurer), Carol Lambert (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski 

(Assistant Treasurer), Nina Campfield, Charles Sieck, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof, 
Kent Blumenthal (CEO) 
 

Directors Present Electronically: Tim Stewart 
 

Directors Absent: Lynne Chalmers 
 

Staff: Cheryl Moose (CFO), Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David 

Jund (Facilities Director), George Rushing II (Recreation Director), Kris Zubicki (Interim 
Recreation Director), Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant), Miles Waterbury 
(Communications Specialist), Payton Snider (System Administrator), Jason King (IT 

Technician) 
 

Visitors: 49 (includes additional staff) 
 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum  

President Crothers called the meeting to order at 1:30pm MST 

Roll call by Secretary Nichols; Quorum established. 
 

2. Adopt Agenda 

MOTION: Vanderhoof / Seconded. Adopt Agenda as presented.  
Passed: unanimous 

 

3. New Business 

A. MOTION: Coon / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve sending the 
site development plan prepared by WSM Architects, Inc., for the GVR 24-

court Pickleball Center to be built at 2612 S. Camino de la Canoa to Pima 
County for their review and approval. Further, that the Board approve 

$2,500.00 from the Initiatives Reserve Fund to be paid to Pima County at 
the time of the submittal. 

Passed: unanimous 
   

4. Member Comments: 0 

 

5. Adjournment 

MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Adjourn meeting at 1:39pm MST.  
Passed: unanimous 

 

 
 

              
Denise Nichols Date Karen Miars Date 
Secretary  Administrative Assistant 















1 
 

 

 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 
 
 
 

Recommendation for updating the GVR Capital Projects 3/5 Year Plan 

 
 

EXHIBIT 

 
Each year the Planning & Evaluation Committee reviews the long range planning of the 

corporation related to facility growth and expansion. This evaluation considers facility 
usage data, club requests, staff requests and includes input from the Long Range 
Strategic Master Plan and the 3/5 Year Plan. Recommendations from P&E are then sent 

to the Accounting department for inclusion in the Capital Budget. 
 

 
MOTION:  Authorize the P&E Committee to update the GVR Capital Projects 3/5 Plan 

annually, no later than March 25 of each year, allowing the updated 3/5 Year Plan and 
Annual Club requests to both be available for the annual capital budgeting process that 
begins in June of each year. 



1 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT 

 
Board of Directors  
January 29, 2019 

 
 

GVR 2019 Club Requests 

 
 

GVR clubs request support from GVR for expenditures each year. The P & E Committee 

approved $80,000 and submitted that amount to the Fiscal Affairs Committee for inclusion in 

the 2019 operating budget.  

 

MOTION:  GVR Board of Directors authorize execution of P&E Club approved projects for 

2019 in the amount of $80,000. 







 
 

EXHIBIT 
 

Board of Directors 
January 29, 2019 

 
Fiscal Affairs Recommendation for 

Reserve Funding for Phase 1 of Pickleball Complex Construction 
 

 
Overview: 
 
January 23rd, 2019 the Fiscal Affairs Committee passed a motion recommending reserve funding, with 
an amount not to exceed, for the first phase of construction for the 24-cour pickleball center to be 
located at 2621 South Camino de la Canoa.  
 
 
GVR Bylaws’ Article VI, Section 2 entitled Authority and Indebtedness states GVR members must 
approve any contract with an “annual payment” greater than 10% of the “annual budget.” Article VI, 
Section 2 DOES NOT APPLY to this recommendation BECAUSE THERE IS NO CONTRACT. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Board of Directors accept and approve the January 23rd, 2019 Fiscal Affairs Committee 
recommendation: 
 
“The Fiscal Affairs Committee recommends the Initiatives Reserve provide up to $1,250,000 for the 
first phase of construction of the Pickleball Center located at 2612 South Camino de la Canoa.” 



Nominations and Elections Committee Recommendation 

Motion: GVR Board of Directors approve follow-up instruction, guidance, and/or 

assistance from Brown Dog Consulting to provide application of the Carver Policy 

Governance module training material to GVR’s specific governing situation before 

the first of April, 2019.  The type of follow-up, cost, and timeframe will be 

determined after discussion and agreement by the eight directors who completed 

the module training. The cost of training is not to exceed $8,500. 

Rationale:  Knowledge is worthless if you don’t apply it. Instruction in the absence of 

application is incomplete because it occurs in an artificial learning environment. 

(Dewey) 

Learners retain approximately: 90% of what they learn when they teach someone 

else/use immediately, 75% of what they learn when they practice what they learned, 

50% of what they learn when engaged in a group discussion, 30% of what they learn 

when they see a demonstration, 20% of what they learn from audio-visual, 10% of what 

they learn when they've learned from reading, and 5% of what they learn when they've 

learned from lecture. 

Learning is an active, constructive process: to learn new information, ideas or skills, we 

must work actively with them in purposeful ways. We need to integrate this new 

material with what we already know-or use it to reorganize what we thought we 

knew. To reach application of newly learned information, one must learn to execute and 

implement (Bloom’s Taxonomy). 

Susan Mogensen of Brown Dog Consulting stated: Once everyone has become familiar 

with the basic principles, we think it would be valuable for the GVR board to have the 

opportunity to look at how and if these principles are "in play," benefitting the board, 

organization, and community. Our experience tells us that these face-to-face workshop 

experiences raise everyone's comfort level with applying Policy Governance principles, 

which in turn provides significant value back to the board and organization… Green 

Valley Recreation board and staff members are already familiar with BDC's online 

learning program, the Board EXCELerator, which features eight modules designed to 

develop understanding about Policy Governance principles in theory and in practice. 

Learning the basic principles, concepts, purpose, benefits, and language of owner-

accountable effective governance enables GVR board and staff members to proceed 

with the next phase: the implementation and practical application of these principles. 

 































 

 

 

EXHIBIT 

GVR Foundation Appointed Director 

 

Overview 

In compliance with GVR Corporate Policy Manual, the GVR Board of Directors appoints GVR Members in 

good standing to the GVR Foundation Board, choosing from among one or more candidates nominated 

by the GVR Foundation. 

 

Recommendation 

GVR Foundation Board of Directors recommends the nomination of John Damitio to fill the three-year 

term as an Appointed Director. Further, the Foundation Board invites the GVR President to nominate 

Mr. Damitio, a GVR member in good standing, for appointment to the GVR Foundation Board to fill the 

Appointed Director position; with the term expiring January 2022. 


	1 - 01292019 BOD Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2 - 12042018 BOD Minutes.pdf
	3 - 01072019 BOD Minutes - Draft.pdf
	3.b - 11 2018 Financials.pdf
	4 - Exhibit - Updating Capital Projects 3-5 Year Plan 01292019.pdf
	5 - Exhibit - GVR 2019 Club Requests 01292019.pdf
	6 - FAC Surplus Allocation.pdf
	7 - Exhibit - PBFunding 01292019.pdf
	8 - Exhibit Governance Training 01292019.pdf
	9 - GVR Needle-Arts Club application.pdf
	6 - Exhibit - GVRF Appointed Director 01292019.pdf



